
 

 

 

13 October 2022 

 

Coroner Audrey Jamieson 

Coroners Court of Victoria 

65 Kavanagh Street 

Southbank VIC 2006 

Email: cpuresponses@coronerscourt.vic.gov.au 

BY EMAIL   

Dear Coroner Jamieson, 

RE: COR 2016 005097 Investigation into the death of Ivica Andrijasevic  

We refer to your letter dated 7 April 2022, received by Standards Australia via email on 

21 July 2022 regarding the Coronial Investigation into the tragic death of Ivica 

Andrijasevic.  

We acknowledge the tragic circumstances in which Mr Andrijasevic died. Our sincere 

thoughts are with Mr Andrijasevic’s family and loved ones. 

Following on from our letter dated 26 July 2022, we note that the following 

recommendation directed to Standards Australia in the Coroner’s letter: 

“5. In the interests of public health and safety and preventing like deaths, I 

recommend that: 

Standards Australia engage the appropriate experts to review AS 2550.10-2006. I 

recommend that the review includes a consideration of the circumstances in which 

Ivica Andrijasevic died, and my Findings regarding his untimely and preventable 

death.” 

About Standards Australia’s role 

Standards Australia is Australia’s leading independent, non-governmental standards 

organisation. We are also Australia’s representative of the International Organization for 

Standardization (ISO) and International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC). 

Under Standards Australia’s standard development procedures, a project to develop a 

new Australian Standard®, or to revise an existing one, is commenced if a project 

proposal form is submitted to Standards Australia and that project is assessed and 

approved in accordance with Standards Australia’s processes. 

The process followed by Standards Australia to assess new proposals for the 

development of new Australian Standards® is summarised in the Standards Australia 

Guide – Project Prioritisation Process and Criteria, available via this link. 

http://www.standards.org.au/StandardsDevelopment/Developing_Standards/Documents/GU104%20-%20SA%20Guide%20to%20Project%20Prioritisation%20Criteria%20and%20Process.pdf


 

 

It is important to note that in accordance with this process, Standards Australia does not 

initiate standards development projects by its own inclination. Rather, a project to prepare 

a new, or revise an existing, standard, or adopt an international standard, can only result 

from a request by external stakeholders, such as government, industry or trade 

association, professional body, consumer organisation or an individual.  

Standards Australia works with many hundreds of stakeholder organisations and many 

thousands of expert volunteers to develop standards. Organisations involved in our 

process include various industry associations, professional and community based 

organisations, government departments and regulatory agencies with an interest in the 

setting of standards in Australia.  

It is also important to note that Standards Australia publishes voluntary standards. 

However, State and Commonwealth governments often refer to standards in their 

legislation. When this happens, these standards can become mandatory. 

Next steps 

ME-005, the Technical Committee responsible for AS 2550.10-2006 Cranes, hoists and 

winches—Safe use, Part 10: Mobile elevating work platforms, is currently working on a 

project to revise this standard. Standards Australia therefore asked ME-005 and its 

relevant subcommittees to consider the Coroner’s Findings and consider whether in this 

current review any amendments to the standard ought to be made in light of those 

Findings.  

Current requirements in standards relating to Mobile elevating work platforms 

In response to this request, Subcommittee ME-005-10 wishes to draw the Coroner’s 

attention to the fact that the current edition of AS 2550.10 includes a requirement for a 

preoperational inspection before the commencement of each work shift which includes 

specified visual inspections and functional tests before the use of a mobile elevating work 

platform (MEWP).  As part of the pre-operational inspection, all safety-related problems 

are required to be recorded, reported and resolved prior to using the MEWP.  

Furthermore, the standard requires that all irregularities concerning the operation of the 

MEWP, any abnormal noise or movement, and all incidences concerning the safe 

operation of the MEWP must be recorded in the logbook and communicated to the 

responsible person. The standard also currently requires replacement components to be 

identical or equivalent to the original components.  

The Subcommittee has also noted that AS/NZS 1418.10:2011  Cranes, hoists and 

winches, Part 10: Mobile elevating work platforms, which includes requirements for the 

Controls for MEWPs, specifies that Control devices that control any movement of the 

MEWP automatically return to the ‘off’ or ‘neutral’ position when released. 

Proposed changes to standards relating to Mobile elevating work platforms 

In considering the Coroner’s Findings and recommendation directed to Standards 

Australia, and in light of the existing requirements in the standards as noted above, the 

Subcommittee considered increasing the frequency of preoperational inspections and has 



 

 

agreed to adopt as part of its revision of AS 2550.10 a requirement for a preoperational 

inspection at a change of operator in addition to the current requirement of conducting 

such an inspection before the commencement of every shift. The Subcommittee was 

mindful that any further increase to the frequency of preoperational inspections might give 

rise to the potential for non-compliance or human error or oversight due to haste or 

complacency when conducting those inspections (for example the perceived significance 

of the inspection may be reduced if inspections are to be conducted too frequently).    

In addition, the Committee has agreed to include in the preoperational inspection required 

by AS 2550.10 a functional check that controls return to neutral when released, which will 

complement the current requirement in AS/NZS 1418.10. Furthermore, in a separate 

project to revise AS/NZS 1418.10, the Committee has agreed to include a requirement for 

the operators’ manual to include preoperational inspections, which will reflect the usual 

industry practice. 

We will notify the court of any updates on the above standards, but if you have any 

questions in the meantime, please contact me on 02 9237 6163 or at 

christina.forsyth@standards.org.au. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

Christina Forsyth 

General Counsel 

Standards Australia Limited 

mailto:christina.forsyth@standards.org.au

